1.  Question: Can Solicitation NNM10323630Q be extended?
Answer: The solicitation is hereby extended until 05/12/2010 1530 CST. Technical questions for this solicitation will be accepted via email to Emeterio.v.Hernandez@nasa.gov until 05/06/2010. 

2. Question: How do vendors submit a quote for Solicitation NNM10323630Q?

Answer: To clarify the method in which vendors should submit quotes for solicitation NNM10323630Q, delivery of quotes should be made as noted in CI-13 (see amended clause CI-13), three (3) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy via CD or email should be submitted to Emeterio.V.Hernandez@nasa.gov or sent via mail to Emmett Hernandez, Mail Code PS43, Bldg 4708, RM 236, MSFC, AL 35812.
3. Question: In Section 4.2.1, what are the NASA supplied application programs?

Answer: Section 4.2.1 refers to the Vendors requirement to deliver API’s that can be used to interface with current and future applications.  This allows for customization by developers supporting test programs.  NASA supplied applications refer to in-house developed applications and utilities that support test programs.   

4. Question: In Section 4.2.2, can you explain the intent of this section?

Answer: Standard array access via name or integer variable.  

5. Question: In Section 4.5.2.4.1, Please explain difference between health check verification versus calibration.

Answer: Calibration coefficients are used in correcting data system offsets to specified accuracy.  Health Check verifies system accuracy using a secondary external NIST traceable source. 

6. Question: In Section 4.5.2.1, This requirement states that operating time must be no greater than  15 minutes to perform a calibration on 1000 channels utilizing any combination of internal and/or external calibration sources, we are unfamiliar with what the external calibration sources that the customer may utilize.  How will customer plan to validate?  Based on this requirement and assuming  a minimum of 2 calibration points for both system and source may stabilize in less than 450 ms.  Since most of these channels have multiple ranges and each range would require a minimum of 2 points, assuming 5 ranges, both system and customer supplied source must stabilize in less than 90 ms.  This requirement appears to be very excessive.

Answer: This requirement references Internal Calibration. For clarification:  An external calibration source, if used,  is determined by the vendor.  An internal calibration source is a common solution.   Internal calibration only applies to internal vendor supplied hardware.  External Instrumentation and end-to-end calibrations are not addressed in section 4.5.2.1.

7. Question: In Section 4.5.3.7, Please provide information of how real time data streaming to customer provided applications WinPlot, PCGoal are to be acquired.  Specific data formed software documentation, communication methods, etc.  Should be included in this description and requirement.  

Answer: WinPlot is a data plotting application that runs on the Windows workstation platform.  The software is specifically tailored to meet the needs of the NASA engine and component testing environment where vast amounts of data is recorded and analyzed.  WinPlot supports the viewing of test data from pre-test through test and archive, in both historical and real-time modes.   The software package runs on a standard Windows desktop system.  Under most circumstances the recommended system requirements for the OS is sufficient for WinPlot.  The source code is written in Microsoft Visual C++ 6.0 and is compatible with the Windows 98/NT/2000 platforms.  Code modules and dynamic libraries are included in the software, which allow user versatility in importing, defining, viewing, and printing data.  This application is available for distribution via the NASA Technology Transfer Office.  

Some of the primary functionalities of WinPlot include the following:

· Scripting - All interactive functionality is supported in WinPlot script language.  The comprehensive functional support of scripting allows a user to do everything from basic setup to complete data analysis packages.

· Expressions – Capability to perform a wide range of mathematical expressions, including standard math functions.  Allows users to make complex calculations by combining parameter data from various sources/files, constants and math functions all within the same expression with data automatically calculated for each point within a specified time period.

· Real-time – Capability to display real-time data without limiting any of the functionality of the program.  All interactive and scripting capability is available for real-time data analysis.  Real-time data can be intermixed with posttest data/flight data for comparative analysis without performing any special setups. 

· Zoom and Pan – Data views can be easily manipulated via mouse or keyboard to achieve a desired view.  Scaling may be zoomed in/out or panned up/down/left/right to reach any desired level of detail.  Axes may also be set specifically to a desired precision.
 


PCGoal:

PCGoal provides tabular data across multiple displays.  It can be replaced by a vendors display utility.
 

SunAcc:

SunAcc is a library that allows applications to read and write the standardized Sun format data files.  This code runs on the Windows platform as well as various versions and implementations of the UNIX O/S.  This code contains a complete function set allowing for creation and manipulation of data files both real-time and static.  Common uses include production of archive data files from Stennis Space Center, Marshall Space Flight Center and Kennedy Space Center.  WinPlot, PCGoal and various other applications utilize this library for data access.  This library will be provided to the vendors through the NASA Technology Transfer Office.

8. Question: In Section 4.5.4.1, does this mean the alarm output should change in less than 3 ms of application of signal exceeding alarm threshold?  

Answer: Yes.  For clarification:  Reference 5.1.1.3.6 - Discrete outputs shall energize within 2 scan periods of the programmed triggering channel receiving trigger level voltage.  “Application of the signal” will be defined by the system scan rate per this spec.

9. Question: In Section 4.5.6.2.2.1, please specify and provide functional requirements based on capabilities of WinPlot because it is not a COTS item.

Answer: WinPlot is a data plotting application that runs on the Windows workstation platform.  The software is specifically tailored to meet the needs of the NASA engine and component testing environment where vast amounts of data is recorded and analyzed.  WinPlot supports the viewing of test data from pre-test through test and archive, in both historical and real-time modes.   The software package runs on a standard Windows desktop system.  Under most circumstances the recommended system requirements for the OS is sufficient for WinPlot.  The source code is written in Microsoft Visual C++ 6.0 and is compatible with the Windows 98/NT/2000 platforms.  Code modules and dynamic libraries are included in the software, which allow user versatility in importing, defining, viewing, and printing data.  This application is available for distribution via the NASA Technology Transfer Office.  

Some of the primary functionalities of WinPlot include the following:

· Scripting - All interactive functionality is supported in WinPlot script language.  The comprehensive functional support of scripting allows a user to do everything from basic setup to complete data analysis packages.

· Expressions – Capability to perform a wide range of mathematical expressions, including standard math functions.  Allows users to make complex calculations by combining parameter data from various sources/files, constants and math functions all within the same expression with data automatically calculated for each point within a specified time period.

· Real-time – Capability to display real-time data without limiting any of the functionality of the program.  All interactive and scripting capability is available for real-time data analysis.  Real-time data can be intermixed with posttest data/flight data for comparative analysis without performing any special setups. 

· Zoom and Pan – Data views can be easily manipulated via mouse or keyboard to achieve a desired view.  Scaling may be zoomed in/out or panned up/down/left/right to reach any desired level of detail.  Axes may also be set specifically to a desired precision.

10. Question: In Section 4.5.7.4, Please provide a description of the NASA Sun Format, since it is not a COTS item.

Answer: SunAcc is a library that allows applications to read and write the standardized Sun format data files.  This code runs on the Windows platform as well as various versions and implementations of the UNIX O/S.  This code contains a complete function set allowing for creation and manipulation of data files both real-time and static.  Common uses include production of archive data files from Stennis Space Center, Marshall Space Flight Center and Kennedy Space Center.  WinPlot, PCGoal and various other applications utilize this library for data access.  This library will be provided to the vendors through the NASA Technology Transfer Office.

11.  Question: In Section 4.5.8.1, please define custom reports design and functions, this requirement is open ended.

Answer: The vendor shall supply API access to allow the customer to create custom reports.  Yes, the intent is to have the capability to create reports as required.

12.  Question: In Section 5.1.1.3.6, please elaborate the intent of paragraph and how the validation is to be accomplished.

Answer: The intent is to accomplish alarm capability at every chassis  in every system configuration. Refer to 11.0 Acceptance Criteria for validation

11.0 ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA: 
11.1 Vendor shall provide a Quality Assurance acceptance test procedure to demonstrate compliance with the specifications prior to delivery. The procedure shall be submitted to NASA for approval. Test shall be performed at the vendor’s facility with the option of government monitoring. 

11.2 This test plan must include a Verification and Validation matrix which addresses the manner in which each requirement specified in this document is to be verified. 

11.3 After assembly by MSFC personnel, System Verification shall be conducted at MSFC and the Vendor shall provide on-site personnel to support this effort as noted in 9.0 – System Verification Support.

13.  Question: In Section 5.1.3.1, please elaborate on the intent of the paragraph as many of the channels are differential inputs.

Answer: The intent is obtain vendor recommendations for DAS grounding schemes as related to the various typical system grounds – facility, power, chassis, logic, analog and instrumentation.

14.  Question: In Section 5.2.1.2.1 & 5.2.1.3.1, why is there a limit on maximum channels per assembly, since 8 channels or more is the norm.  Also, since the size of the assembly is undefined, the wiring complexity/density cannot be defined, based upon simple maximum channel count.  These types of requirements limiting the number of channels appear to be the customer’s method to limit compliant responses to a single vendor. Please review these requirements to ensure this is actually what customer needs.  

Answer: The requirement was established to minimize single points of failure for potentially large segments of test article measurements during critical propulsion testing.  In addition, this retains a long-standing established standard at NASA’s Marshall Space Flight Center and Stennis Space Center where large scale propulsion testing is conducted.  The intent is to minimize risk to the test program and maximize safety.

15. Question: In Section 5.2.1.5, Please identify what 8 wire configurations for strain gage and how they are to be used since 6 is the norm.  Our assumptions are Force, Sense, Measure and Shunt Cal is this correct?

Answer: The Strain Gage requirements allow for two wire connections for four functions: Signal, Excitation, Shunt Calibration, and Excitation Sense. 

16.   Question: In Section 5.2.1.6.5, is this measurement to occur simultaneously with data acquisition process?  

Answer: No, Excitation Sense will not be monitored during Data Acquisition.

17.  Question: In Section 5.2.1.7.2, If system has programmable resistors and embedded bridge calculations/nulling are soldered terminals required for bridge completion.  If answer is yes, please clarify and explain why and how they will be utilized and functions that will not otherwise be achieved.

Answer: The intent is to allow the customer to reconfigure the card per test program.   Reference:

5.2.5.1.3 The Signal Conditionings shall provide selectable bridge configuration for the purpose of outfitting one conditioner with two different resistance bridge configurations (120 ohm, 350 ohm, 1000 ohm, etc.). Any bridge can be selected based on requirements to reduce transition time between tests.

18.  Question: In Section 5.2.1.7.4, for a bridge transducer, how do you utilize a constant current mode?  This requirement is unfamiliar to us for bridge circuits.  

Answer: Constant current is not required for Bridge Circuits.
